
Control Number : 45231

Item Number : 17

Addendum StartPage: 0



HE
DOCKET NO. 45231

^'^'J ^^'^^- ^
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NO. 1 TO CHANGE RATES §

TROPHY CLUB MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT NO. I'S
RESPONSE TO COMMISSION STAFF'S FIRST REQUEST FOR

INFORMATION/REQUEST FOR ADMISSION
QUESTION NOS. STAFF 1-1 THROUGH STAFF 1-18

COMES NOW, Trophy Club Municipal Utility District No. 1(`TCMUDI") and files its
Response to Commission Staff's First Request for Information/Request for Admission -
Question Nos. Staff 1-1 through Staff 1-18

Respectfully submitted,

pr ax
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By: .^..' _ .

John J. Carlton

John J. Carlton
The Carlton Law Firm P.L.L.C.
2705 Bee Cave Road, Suite 200
Austin, Texas 78746
(512) 614-0901
Fax (512) 900-2855
State Bar No. 03817600
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Trophy Club AfUl) :'^'o. I's Response to Staffs First RFI & RFA Page 1 of 8

2015 DEC ^b1,^^I^^lUTILITY

an*



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that I have served or will serve a true and correct copy of the foregoing

document via hand delivery, facsimile, electronic mail, overnight mail, U.S. mail and/or

Certified Mail Return Receipt Requested to all parties on this the 31" day of December, 2015.

^rt

John Carlton
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REQUEST FOR INFORMATION/REQUEST FOR ADMISSION
QUESTION NOS. STAFF 1-1 THROUGH 1-18

Staff - 1-1. Please provide the date of the rate action that is being appealed by the Trophy

Club Municipal Utility District Ratepayers in this proceeding

Response: TCMUDI took action on July 21, 2015, to adopt new water and wastewater
rates to be effective on September 1, 2015, as reflected in the TCMUDI
Minutes attached to this response.

Staff - 1-2. Please provide:

a. All documents relevant to determining whether Trophy Club Public
Improvement District ratepayers have standing in this proceeding, and

b. All legal and factual bases that support or oppose the standing of Trophy
Club Public Improvement District ratepayers in this proceeding.

Response: The PID Petition is an appeal by individuals who are residents of the Trophy
Club Public Improvement District ("PID"), which was created in 2007 by the
Town of Trophy Club ("Town"). See the "Historical Information" related to
the PID attached to this response, which is from the Town's website:
http://www.trophyclub.org/departments/finance/pid/pid-overview.html.

The boundaries of the PID do not overlap the boundaries of the District, as
shown on the map attached to this response. See also the following link:
http://www.trophyclub.org/assets/tc/visitors/tcmud_pidmap.pdf.

TCMUDI does not provide retail water or wastewater service to the
residents of the PID. The TCMUD1 is authorized to operate PWS No.
0610018, as reflected in the TCEQ Drinking Water Watch Water System
Summary Sheet attached to this response.

The Town provides retail water and wastewater service to the PID residents.
Upon information and belief, the Town is authorized to operate PWS No.
0610273, as reflected in the TCEQ Drinking Water Watch Water System
Summary Sheet attached to this response.

The District provides wholesale water and wastewater service to the Town
for the area of the PID under an "Amended and Restated Contract for
Wholesale Water Supply and Wastewater Treatment Services and Water
and Wastewater Operational Services" dated April 15, 2014 ("Wholesale
Contract"), which replaced previous agreements between the District and the
Town related to wholesale water supply and wastewater treatment and water
and wastewater system operations. A copy of the Wholesale Contract is
attached to this response. Under the Wholesale Contract, the Town adopts
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its own rate order to establish the water and wastewater charges to the
Town's customers, and the District then bills the Town's customers for those
services.

Upon information and belief, after the adoption of new water and wastewater
rates by TCMUD1 on July 21, 2015, the Town of Trophy Club adopted
revised rates to be effective on September 1, 2015, as reflected in item 13 of
the Minutes of the Town of Trophy Club for August 25, 2015 and Ordinance
No. 2015-24, both of which are attached to this response. TCMUD1 bills the
rates adopted by the Town's Ordinance No. 2015-24 to the retail customers
of the Town as required under the Wholesale Contract.

The District does not establish retail water or wastewater rates for the
residents of the PID. The residents of the PID are ratepayers of the Town,
not the District. Consequently, the residents of the PID do not have standing
to appeal the District's retail rates under Section 13.043(b) of the Texas
Water Code. Further, it is not appropriate to include the PID Petition in
Docket No. 45231, and the PID Petition should be severed from this action on
the Retail Petition.

Staff - 1-3. Please state whether all Trophy Club Public Improvement District ratepayers are

located within the municipal limits of the town of Trophy Club.

Response: All PID ratepayers are located within the municipal limits of the Town of
Trophy Club and none of those ratepayers are located within the boundaries
of TCMUDI. The boundaries are shown on the map attached to this
response.

Staff - 1-4. Please state the number of Trophy Club Public Improvement District ratepayers

that are located within the municipal limits of the town of Trophy Club.

Response: Upon information and belief, there are 1,352 PID ratepayers within the
municipal limits of the Town. None of those ratepayers are located within
the boundaries of TCMUDI.

Staff - 1-5. Please state the number of Trophy Club Public Improvement District ratepayers

that are located outside the municipal limits of the town of Trophy Club.

Response: Upon information and belief, none of the PID ratepayers are located outside
the municipal limits of the Town.

Staff - 1-6. Please state the number of Trophy Club Public Improvement District ratepayers

that signed the PID Petition to Appeal Rates Established by the Board of

Directors that are located:

a. Within the municipal limits of the town of Trophy Club, and

Trophy Club ML'D No. 1's Response to Staff's First RFI & RFA Page 4 of 8

4



b. Outside the municipal limits of the town of Trophy Club.

Response: TCMUDI has not verified the signatures of the PID ratepayers that signed
the petition and cannot provide a number. However, all PID ratepayers are
within the municipal limits of the Town and none of those ratepayers are
located within the boundaries of TCMUDI.

Staff - 1-7. Please provide all documents executed or issued by the town of Trophy Club to

implement the rate change, consistent with Section 7.1(a) of the Amended and

Restated Contract for Wholesale Water Supply and Wastewater Treatment

Services and Water and Wastewater Operational Services (dated April 15, 2014),

that resulted from the Trophy Club Municipal Utility District's rate change that is

subject to appeal in this proceeding.

Response: See the Town Minutes of August 25, 2015, and Ordinance No. 2015-24, which
were provided in response to Staffs Request for Information 1-2, above.

Staff - 1-8. Please admit that the Trophy Club Municipal Utility District is responsible for

billing all Trophy Club Public Improvement District ratepayers. If your response

is other than an unqualified admit, please fully explain your response and provide

all documents supporting your response.

Response: Admitted with the following qualification: TCMUD1 provides those water
and wastewater billing and collection services to the Town's retail water and
wastewater customers under the operations section of the Wholesale
Contract between TCMUD1 and the Town solely because water and
wastewater billing and collection services is a provision of the Wholesale
Contract.

Staff - 1-9. Please admit that the Trophy Club Municipal Utility District is responsible for

collecting payments from all Trophy Club Public Improvement District

ratepayers. If your response is other than an unqualified admit, please fully

explain your response and provide all documents supporting your response.

Response: Admitted with the following qualification: TCMUD1 provides water and
wastewater billing and collection services to the Town's retail water and
wastewater customers under the operations section of the Wholesale
Contract between TCMUDI and the Town solely because water and
wastewater billing and collection services is a provision of the Wholesale
Contract.
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Staff - 1-10. Please admit that the Trophy Club Municipal Utility District is responsible for

reading the meters of all Trophy Club Public Improvement District ratepayers. If

your response is other than an unqualified admit, please fully explain your

response and provide all documents supporting your response.

Response: Admitted with the following qualification: TCMUD1 provides water meter
reading services to the Town's retail water customers under the operations
section of the Wholesale Contract between TCMUDI and the Town solely
because water meter reading services is a provision of the Wholesale
Contract.

Staff - 1-11. Please admit that the Trophy Club Municipal Utility District is responsible for

receiving and responding to service calls from all Trophy Club Public

Improvement District ratepayers. If your response is other than an unqualified

admit, please fully explain your response and provide all documents supporting

your response.

Response: Admitted with the following qualification: TCMUD1 provides system
operation and maintenance services, including responses to service calls, to
the Town's retail water customers under the operations section of the
Wholesale Contract between TCMUDl and the Town solely because system
operation and maintenance services is a provision of the Wholesale Contract.

Staff - 1-12. Please admit that the Trophy Club Municipal Utility District is responsible for

operating and maintaining the water distribution system and wastewater collection

system that serves all Trophy Club Public Improvement District ratepayers. If

your response is other than an unqualified admit, please fully explain your

response and provide all documents supporting your response.

Response: Admitted with the following qualification: TCMUDI provides system
operation and maintenance services to the Town's retail water customers
under the operations section of the Wholesale Contract between TCMUDI
and the Town solely because system operation and maintenance services is a
provision of the Wholesale Contract.

Staff - 1-13. Please admit that the Trophy Club Municipal Utility District's retail rates are

identical to the retail rates billed by the Trophy Club Municipal Utility District to

the Trophy Club Public Improvement District ratepayers. If your response is other

than an unqualified admit, please fully explain your response and provide all

documents supporting your response.
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Response: Denied. TCMUD1's retail rates do not include a monthly surcharge that the
Town charges the PID ratepayers. The Town sets the surcharge at any
amount it deems necessary in accordance with section 7.1(d) of the Wholesale
Contract. That surcharge is shown in Ordinance 2015-24, which has been
provided in response to Staff Request for Information 1-2.

Staff - 1-14. Please admit that if the Trophy Club Municipal Utility District's retail rates were

lowered as a result of this proceeding, the retail rates billed by the Trophy Club

Municipal Utility District to the Trophy Club Public Improvement District

ratepayers would be lowered an identical amount. If your response is other than

an unqualified admit, please fully explain your response and provide all

documents supporting your response.

Response: TCMUD1 cannot neither admit nor deny that if the Trophy Club Municipal
Utility District's retail rates were lowered as a result of this proceeding, the
retail rates billed by the Trophy Club Municipal Utility District to the
Trophy Club Public Improvement District ratepayers would be lowered an
identical amount because TCMUD1 does not set the retail rates for the
Town.

Staff - 1-15. Please identify the public water system serving the Trophy Club Public

Improvement District ratepayers

Response: Upon information and belief, the PID ratepayers are served by PWS No.
0610273. The TCMUDI ratepayers are served by PWS No. 0610018. Title to
water provided under the Wholesale Contract passes from TCMUD1 to the
Town at the point of connection.

Staff - 1-16. Please identify the owner of the public water system serving the Trophy Club

Public Improvement District ratepayers.

Response: Upon information and belief, the Town owns the public water system serving
the PID ratepayers.

Staff - 1-17. Please provide any lease or contract for the use of the public water system serving

the Trophy Club Public Improvement District ratepayers.

Response: TCMUDI has no responsive documents in its possession or control.
TCMUDI does not lease or contract for the use of the public water system
serving the PID ratepayers.
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Staff - 1-18. Please admit that the Trophy Club Municipal Utility District currently keeps

100% of all retail rates collected from Trophy Club Public Improvement District

ratepayers. If your response is other than an unqualified admit, please fully

explain your response and provide all documents supporting your response.

Response: Denied. TCMUDI is required to perform an annual "true-up" and submit
payment to the Town for any overpayments in the previous calendar year
(See section 7.2(d) of the Wholesale Contract).
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rrnl;aticxr ttrd irrir;rrtion wc°tl
icrtcrning wslk m : nciy,ltborfi€.xxi entry features

NortftC;tt 1 _.xf 1^i;nlt wcSL parks

Park cirainaa;^ irnprovvanGnts

(',Fiitrn;ycrtcy _ _ _

oral et;trn atet! ccr^t of A;rthorir:t.d ltnprt}vcment:^

S 3.IAt t.> (t,

5 MIti 74°51S-3

} t >.xr} (di(3

i? ,^(!{?,ilfif)

> ! ; l,{}Ot)

^:?,.';it;,t}tttY

'txr,ttti(?

a70,00 {1

?

S ? 2.4 18,47 1

`I :7e Authorized f:;iprt>v4tnecats i>ctriviit property inside and <>t^t i^i4 the 1111). .YCcordimg'ly' the

Crr,ts of, th'^se inlririxverni:n's* must be <allcs^<atod between property itiiid.:. the f'1[} :ind tht: l owu.
flits allocation i, r.lc'cxit?;;d in `;tc-tic n V t>f'ttiri; 'c-r.' ce w. 3n: ;~ '^ar:

as at>plac ;i?t;r,ta+ ! 1 1 (t t,t};v t l 7 portion trt ti}^ ND " t _ ho mg he actual of budgeted '0'0",

ctl all or any pzartrt7rt of the Authorized Improvements that pn}v:do a-'pr:cial 1>cnefit to the

t1v^,eit Property and :trc: allocated to the PID, as shown in Tat-tic t11-f:3. flic Developer ?11&_,

,,'r.C-f to pitythe imiout}t by which the total Costs shown in Tahk: 111I-A exceed the t(Stnl Pii)

("(IM", "krcr^krt in 1^ ab1e, 11143 o.;t., the Costs allocated it} the T ow°ni.

7
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Table !It-B
!'4I) C-:0sts

A^#hc7rt^et^ 3m^rc7 .t1^^nts 110 Costs

%whwi::.t F';uktiv:sy zzllprrvenlcrlt:;, uticret:tion unprovements.

and Trol*^Y S.lub Lricv irn^rrk^rr,^nt^ -,i5rlth or Northivc^,t

'c'ukw.t y

Imrliay i kf 06vve 6aipri?4i°meuts tither than sOULIA of
west i':asELS n

l4'3Uer t;t^C^it r,'i{ +t ,y:;terlt (ntt( irn_Iucting Elcvrrrec3 wat.r tank) S' .I 3k, ltltt

1.1m4,ited Watts UA i960.()!)tt

YLati!.t'.wmer C./ltlt:l.,*{(m\5.}WTO 09VO1rt

7 r+.1 systtrn and itpc:rl sNcr S I,i?11 ,i) 39

t ^litCi?i.Ti.',li^:if^ SIICC'(S^aZ1C, itic"i^i3YS 1tir1ti7L;i(tlt:".a3, ^tilCtv.i3^..^e,a,
1 46 fl 46tmt=,t:a,tn and trrigw An well

.

re^nir_, w,i1l"^and nc,l^fhha>rizautl entry i-eahtrr.^ S_' RANia

r mxl ti ,rthwGn parks S3114,9t6

A KOS,UT)

C7n.at,lu; . l :(C3kiCt 'itn and ? z: :I1 1 ?2,illcrif 1Al,t}{}O

. . _ _..........W .._____.... . ... .

t,_,tuttat^^Li t^t^^^,r^tS ,atl,<ity,^1!>^

f tiG I own anticipate, that the ^rl7provwnlent"^ to the Ntartltt:vt aad .Norffike st parks could hiclude

the SAM, llltiy<,mtrrtdc p<iwili<+tv, rtstrt>rllns, soccer Bt:ld,, baseball Held, and aquMic
Scilly. the ?nTrisvL.fnents to be provided by the f'ti.? will meet the add tiorrtii recrtati<,r^al needs

or be ^^oWT: related to the increase W population from be new housing !lntty to be constructed

within the P1I). Ime mu also anticipates t}tm the ilrlpm::mettto to the mil System WmalCi

^r^.;turfo :he con,tm,:trem Mew at. ^-.. 1}.ahs tinr:6udtng pavtngj m the (owns ext^.;tirtg pmks and

Mrt 'w(tr.tt:i,.

A ion hrl ..iEaCU^SWrl .al'ti^;' ,:d tGi^:C>tc:.frii.s; expected tt? be :ntisrr::.tl to WA be 1'11} Costs

:li Able l1t-f3 t:; W<..111 in Wion IV r:)I fili:; Service =rrlcl ,l:,e;;srrtent E'tztrt.

;i.c costs shown in raw t1i-[-3 are estimates and may be revved in Annual Service Phri

t:tX37tCS. ^,ltltlt'..S ;ri.)CTS Cir!w 1tL'.ti, tteti1 may he 'applied to r,t Ci)^,i ttl4rc_a.tic_ in 'mother (tile it^mi,

i'tj "~c: tr^mi^rs. tc^w.ti^er, Lire limited ro the portEi>tt ot tltr, ,,as'mgs rcla!ed to the F'Ii)'s ttarc of

the ..1,d these is ings may he applied only !0 the pull) , , nart: crt t11e iracr^.^^u in the costs of

another !nac 4•,:^n7.

K
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5. ESTIMATED PROJECT COSTS

Cost estimates were prepared based on preliminary designs of proposed
,Authonzer! Improvements known at the time of this Report. Actual costs may
vary from the estimates due to changes in market prices for labor, materials and
equipment, and/or due to differences in final designs compared with preliminary
designs. The estimated cost of the Authorized Improvements are summarized
below,

Traphy Clul> Public Improvement District No. I

Engineer's Opinion of Cost for Authorized Improvements

'a ALLOCATED EXCLUOED

1, THOROUGHFARE IMPROVEMENTS COST IN PIG TO PIG_............. FROM PIG

4i0RT1{O+VEa T PARKWAY M1PRO`IE.ME14Ty S6430.nt>?`1 00 .t7°3 5639,3F9 ,5i2 S 180 ,140 36

tA!V1.7 ACQU':il NON {APt7Rf?X 2 612 ACRES) J3b i.fq J 1, L'0"o ^72 797 ._',_<.

5(18 TOTAI ,'40 RTFiWFS? 'ARKtiVA Y tv14'1tt)V dvt^ t"S;, j1 I63,667 AI 8().'; S930.729.58 3732.937 8;

Tu;:Jf'N`? CLUB ORIVF '`,iPF7OVEr<r!,N?'a 3011T*1 t'3F"
N0R T 1-',i^lEST PARKWAY t, 5 14,WQ 04 3?0% y t?. C},`i3d 13 33i1"1,0 f5 5 a7

LAND AC{.iE)I;a1TiO'N 113PAr?OX 5 711 ACRE-3) ytsiCl 849 00 r i`,. .1t?;9,571113 1122 277 (47

SUB-!O-AL TROPHY CLiJ6 C3R SOUTH 9tviP RO+IE4IENTS; 42,12d,849.00 rD^ , 699.,506 06 $4733,12.93

IN1ER.̀;ECT6ri??7IMP1247VEtv1E.NT:j S540.000 00 `1.01=b $4 1:i.4(}3 69 71i14.0'.°31..',1

SUB - TOTAL THOROUGHFARE IMPROVEMENTS: $3,a08,515.41 I3,O46,144,33 57152,372.08

2. THOROU GHFARE IMPROVEMENTS

TROPHY CLUB DRIVE MPROVEVENTS $1 500.000 00 It

LAND AC(:?1JI$iT3C.7N (APPRC)5C 12,973 A(:;R3- -;; :'piQ79F94}fi 37 1T:!" atg79 S^_:S7 so +.?'J

S€ B- rt3 AL TROP ht' CLUB DRIVE I1vi( ft;-1yE1JF.NT5 >?. 573,y96 37 ?, 52 ;79,4%3

Ti7t3141Y C:LUI3 PARK DRIVE 1f41PRc2VE1v?^ J"•`i $874,0Q0 GI) 5874,"'G{J0(a ^0 tH.)

L.ANIT;3,l;t;tJ+Siai(}N(APr'FtrJX 10,F0 ACRES) $.'34Q-5?7121i;G'ln $.idt7,`SS7^^'? 3(1.oi]

SUB-Ti3T,t1L.TFtCJPriI' CLUB PARK QR, iMF'ROt/Eh4E4J?S_ S11,214,537,22 100% 31„214,58Z 22 SO t;^i

SUB ° T/JTAi. THOROUGHFARE IN1PRt2VEJNENTS< $3,734,483.58 $3,744.483.59 $4.30

3. WATER DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM

12'Y16' ^7ATER LINE LOOP {3.(I&0 00 8 .̂3%

'..:' V;AT FR LINE -ALi1NG Vu RCIAC3?f ca7 AND ?lu't^t;?
t3 EE F',/ TANK &7f- 5250.00(1 00 ,YHt; $22:.Sllr, r;, :'

1,"" 4VATf:.ii I v(_ -';C;itt)t) xa°i fF ^,VEF '',;
PAR,TlC:it]ItTiC?r•,i Sf1G'IJCHi.s,kfJ 851% pu UAW 00

SUB i Q7'a4L 1NCtTER
DISTRIE3uTtON SYSTEM* 51,290,000:00 $1,148,i00.00 ;141.900;00

4. ELEVATED WATER TANK {O .5 MGD)

15

$1,200,000.00 Plt)"43 S960,000.00 $2=10,000,00
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6. WASTEWATER COLLECTION SYSTEM

SAI"tiTARYSEWER LINE WITHIN TROPHY (,L US DRIVE $4W,000.00 c173+n ^1 Tt).: $ `.. Ct).flQ
SEVsfE;a ONE T0EXIS T INGS°{STEha ^455 OX0(l 87% 5395,>) ", ,^t :,. tSu.t7{S

SUB -TOTAL WASTEWATER COLLECTION
SYSTEM: 5915,4{►q.oU 3796,050,00 S11869sf1.Qt!

6. TRAIL SYSTEM AND OPEN SPACE

; ^_,3,oC. SYSTEM 95% S53f,8S567 $28,144:33
FtO1YAG,E EASEMENT LANDACQIASIT'ON
;APPROX. 100908 ACRES) 3504 540 c}() 5a1%... _... - adi9.8 2 96,.. _ _^ _...._ $25;357:C34

SUB - TOTAL TRAIL IMPROVEMENTS AND __
OPEN SPACE. $1,tt69,54.00 $1;011,038.63 $53,501.37

7' THOROUGHFARE LANDSCAPING & IRRIGATION

f3Or HY CLUB DRIVE LANDSCAPINIG

i Ri X't-1Y C't_UE3 [)RIVE ;3IDE4'YALK

TROPHY CLUB DRfVF IRRIGATION

IRRIGATION WELLS

RRiGAI ION PONDS
SUB - TOTAL THOROUGHFARE LANDSCAPING &

IRRIGATION:

8<SCREEN1Nt's WALLS & ENTRY FEATURES

jSr?(l.tN,}te (A) ::Jd`!b S672 , 54Z 37 $07,45763

y400,00000 %td% 33;;6.271 19 55:3,728 81

:670.o{?t7 t7u ^^4 °b 158.E147 46 3 11,?5:^ `Yi

$500,00o.iN] 8=31% 1,124.3:38 38 $ 79,66' 02

.a5Ttl,uUf) 00 t34 f4::'8,745 76 569.254 14

$''i,Zd(1,00D,00 $1,916,745.76 $363,254.24

TROPHY CLUB DRIVE DE:CC:RATiVE SCREENING WALL- ;350.{;CCNT.7't`i 100% S350.?:0{} 00 :>0 (')

MARSHALL CREEK ROAD EAST THIN SCREENING wALL. >1 50,000 00 ? o15+J,r.;t){, q0 $() i)u

NEifiHROf7!-iOOC1 ENTP"rr EAT J+?rS 17f1 ENTRIES) $2W.000 , 00 100% 32i7U.000 0n 50.(h:)
SUB - TOT'A!. SCREENING

WAL.LS& ENTRY FEATURES. $700,00d.t7Ci f700,00010 f703,000,00

J. i"`f.lBt,IC PARKS

tdCaP{Tt9WES; PARK 1MPRO31EM^--NTS 15,591 ^i!
NORTHWEST PARK t-AND ACOUISIT=ON
(APPROX, i'' ^)OOAt_;RES) ^9,Jt7t1, C{^ 00 31jsl4,:k1 88 ^85,4.181,2

NORTHEAST PARK 1-VPROVcME`d's S ^6% 5166,204 ')tJ $+;i..7£!5 't.:

NOR; HG,nST PARK LAND AC01,11SiT014
APPROX. :6 100 ACRES) $1.000.000 CIO 9" 6 S949 , '142 , 27_..,- -

^ 50.257 73
-

SUB -TOTAL PUBLIC
PAR1fS^ $5175.040.00 $4,914.916,24 $260,083.76

i O. PARK DRAINAGE IMPROVEMEWTS #",474,000.tp# 95°,'a S325s0t8.97 $48,85103

11.CONSt`Rt3CTION ADMINISTRATION ( MANAGEMENT $50,000.00 83% S50,000.00 $0.00

J2.CONTfNGENE;Y £1,187,437.00 51,187,431.00 $0.00

COMPREHENSIVE TOTAL: 322,438.977,00 $20,419,464,.93 $t,W9„012AT

16
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Sect ion LN'
SE 1x N' I t' E PLAN

The P1D Act retlurre, a sor'Vic-c plan 4over a period of at least live years I'lic service plan. is
required t« deline he annual projcctecl costs and indebtedness for thu improvement projecl_^

undertaken within the 1'1f:1, IS estimated NO Costs plus costs related to tile issuallec of the
Bond, and payment of't.\It4rts,^-a incurred in the e,tablishrnent, adtninistratic>n, anti operathn of

the ('11) is $21(aSl,ttttl}, which 9'1Y3 tosts will be expended t3urin, the lir,,t tive years. The
Bonds will be issued on or kebre September 31. ?ittW„ ur be Service and Assessment f'lttn and

the A:c5cssttaert R,,11 shall termmate. The plan shalt be reviewed and updated annually tor Tc

ptrrm of determining be annual budget fi-^r improvements. The ;zu.ttu;il update to this S;:rv;cL.

and Aw;iwarnc:nt Plan i4 he-rein referred loas the Plan

Bonds are expected to he issued in ?t>t)7 or 21MS liar all of the I'll) i.'o,'ti< 'Fable tV<t ;'tows

estimated sErurces ssnd us+:'s t}t`thc' Botti3>.

Tabte WA1.
SrirtrceuttriUses of Funds

Sources Of ^Funk:

Bond proceed,;^^ _ .^
Ad s(naws of Rams

Total

^? ^ftt) t)t^f}
S27,500,000

y ^)LS Ctt ['11S1tT.S:.`^.+._ ^ n . .. _... .

Emptttetf {'IC} Costs SAW,=
costs (if, issuance and payment o2 i:

incurred in tl't:° eta t?llst,rrrent, y;?,6 2 7,74 6

actrrtini,,rratit?n, and operation r,>fttt,_- i'![?

(.'aprtalir,eti ittti:rest 3I.(i?'09
Reserve Enid S1750AM)

-- ---
[ttt^^l s,rS,,l of turttTi $27Of)ti,Wtl

'rho aggregate principal amount oi't}te Honda issued W not exceed S:' 7,500,{T00. Hhiy sources

and uses of funds table is subject to revision and be actual sources and uses of 1und, 16r any INC

itt°rn tzmy be Mrent than ;howrt above, Hie source,,, ari.f uses of With xi-rc>wrt in I.thle WA

shall he updated each year in the Annual tiertirce. Plan I..NatG to reflect any budget revision,,; and

;t^t,a<sl ura^r^.

The actual interest rate on the Bonds may reptire he amount of the A,::eymmN to be reciutie.et,
as de,caihetf in Section VT. E. 1 L)evekqat:r funds will he paid to i:tranpl<_^te the V.itiortr.eit
ErtWrraver;tents i['tlie amounts }pestrfict! above are not sufficient to complete such u'.-rprr}v.mems.

The annual projected ccrst, and annual t7rejmtti:.d ittiTelvecinesti 4 shown by Able IL'-3. The

annual projected co-its and irttJehtc+_fnL:;.; is subject to revision, and shalt be updated ca';h in (lie
Annual Service E'lin `t_.pd<'tc to ri:tZt'.i't any changes in the Co5t5 or indebtedness expected liar each

year

^
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the itnprrtvr;t::innt.,, tl-^^^. Ytown Council has taken into consideration independent studies
supporliu.g the Conclusion that larger, more expensive homes, on rtvc^rzt!e, will create more
vehicle trips and +_^,reater demands tor water and wastewater wttt;umpttcin, and larger, r or
expen,,cive hotnes are likely to be built on Luger lots- For example, the Arizona Depariolent of

au::'Portation conducted a study {rlt±scribcd in i)evrlojinrczrt and Application z)f ]tip t;rnc°ratiurl
ltatt^z} on the relationship b,:t,^+,tru property values and trip generation r,ttc°,^ of restclerrtial
propc.rty. This Study examined residential communities in I);eittw:3.ri;. Wisomsin, Ohio, and

several other status. The study demonstrated a relationship between property yaluU and trip

gcneratiOn rates, with more expensive hones having higher trip generation rates than less
cx;7^,, tasi4 e ho rt cs.

I-1, [[trvinit taken into cor7sidQrttic7n the matters clGscritrt:ii :thovU, the '.!'ow n (:o,tnr.it has

determined that a[lt?c:atin the I'll) Costs among Parcels based on value atle.r constructing the

Authorized Improvements is best accomplished (and mt3.,,t easily ilfu4_tr.ttzd) by creating

classifications of benefited Parcels based on the "Lot Types" detinctf in Section LB of* t4u.

^Crvtcc and Assessment Plan. T'hc,,o c!<t;siticatit)ns ((i<:rm Lot C`y-pe i representing the highest

, pe ^ representing the lowest value) is set forth in Table V-A be.ltiw. This tahle%vstltt ttt Lot Tv
illustrates that the t`crvvn Council has determined that a[.«t Type I dwelling utit n.-ce.ives ttte

greatest bt:nwtit ffimt the Authorized Iwrttvrtttcnts, which N-.nGf'it is given an "F(juivulont Unit"

value Of [.t} per dwelling unit. The Town Council has determined that a t.Ot ]'yfse' clwc:llit:g

unit receives a"maitcr henetit;. ti;tzmr.ty, 70`?=y of the benefit rr^cc.'svee1 by a Type I Lot atv;^liin-

trnrt {hLni:.t^ the Equivalent Unit value of0,70 per dwelling ^wit). This table illtastratt^s that the

Town Council has determined that a Lot T`ype 3 dwelling unit recctvcs an even smaller b^netit,

n<?m:^ly, Ca?`/o oft1ic benefit received by a Fype I dwelling unit (hence the Equivalent Unit value

r.^t tt 0'' per dwelling ttnitj. The table further illustrates that the ]'own Council has made

dcto-rritinationti with respect to all cit`the Lot Typu,^,.

1',kTiL,E V-,%.

FquivAent Unit Factors

[.ct (y}tc Avera-C

t::;tink2tt;d Unit

lta[ue1

Equivalent Unit

vaILit',;

[xt Type rt.` rm;i V• ^d2i,{^tN) [.d^lPcr:iw;..iis7:;

ro,icamtiat}

to[ ty't?2 ( , til....'
,.>r.:i."

S1125,e1700 t}i{i per i.iLiretti22g

e,F^tltii^ i,} ist i t

{).02 tx'r .ftai:':lin;

t,z S ^ititt!} u*tit

1_oC 1 'tp4 1 ;,U-C,urtii^ S??`+.tX}t} t}..5 } pcr j ve tirqg

^i^i^;9t7zt1 itTlif

t x t t;i?e ,, icftcit 1 K t l,rl} f1,:11 per t. .

i,;«ttti ) 11rt<t

t Rounded

f4
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4. the tiling table f FahI<: 11" I3) ^,hc>lts the Calculation ctfths; Assessment per £:::quivai;;rtt

Unit. Fhz~ri are a total ctt'981).19 t°citiivaleut ;ruts in the PID. The t^^tal Asse^,srnzrtts are ^qttti

to S27,5Ut),00{), reiaait itl,ti; in an Assessment per k'.yuiv°aLettt Unit

TABLE V-8
Assessment Per Equivaktit Unit

Lot I yp4 [:yuivaic:nt Units I`otal 1*IumhLr of
Dwt"tlirl=T Units

I'otal 1777cnt
Ur,i;

Lot I,tinf> 1 ! t)(i pt,-( I63 ctwektiHs'. tittets

50r=v%^=ilm 386.08
trnit

i ou T-,pt^ 9 t" Prr .i^.^c:Iii,t4 377 dwelling units t R'1

t1i=1

I ot t'4rt b o", per hvi'Itinw, t77tSw tt,;ti>, tL*titS ^! i x!

iL)kC

tut I4t,c i ii 44 fir* -iwt•llii .t^ 249ciwt:ltzztg units 116

u; rt

..^tti[ncnis >' ^tAk,vOit

t^ ;CtiC UE)itL,^mt ' ,IICIIL Unit .. . . .

w. The Assessment per dwelling unit is calculated the product of 6) S'17,8t45,03

r,-)ultipiat`d by tii') the aplalicable.. F:qttivalGnt Unit value for A:<tch Lot i'yl)e. For cx,tmple, the

X OS27,S8^.i)8 x I.{)). the AssessmentAssessment for :t Lot Type I dwelling unit is $' i,8ii.{l1
tar 3 Lot I'yt)i 2 dwtllirt} are is S'2I,192.68 02`,05A ; 0.7h), YJ':3h1Q l-' t' bet;; Forth tNs

-:-,-Anew per dwelling wntt tar c<iclY of' the live I.Ut Tylat,s.

'TABL,E" V-C

Estimated Assessment Per Lat Type

Assessment per

I>wt liiu^-, l;ctitL ot i`^ I ,auavatcat Units

T-^I^e t 1 , 0 per i(Wc't =:v, txltt S' Sweiltlp- unit

C}+pe 2 ti^'ta;r.:rz:«c+iisa;wtti $ i,t)>?.6$t rFt^c1..t a;ttt

Lot 1.,:.,. '; tr,i:;;c s7^ii W,2,'^Ct."5 pr 1 v^I1:n^ imi'

Lot C,^;.+c -Y O; t par ci teiliit^ u;tii V

t^vpc 5 {) -i^t ,zc: ct^.^^Ilut an :t $1?. 1,4 li nw 3i;+vi ;ni^ unit

is
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Assessment Roll
The k{ightanrls at Trophy Club Public Improvement District

Town of'" I'aiptiy ( '.Ottb,Texas

Tax Parcel Assessment
}17(146 33 S 1.E;:1t,,6 1-1 i}tI

14739:37 5 I.151;17 ()0

kt133131 $2 !.19:3.iit}

It 171501" S2 L 191 to

1112617 :>,2513 W.t)t]

R3 I26 (`I 1932,478.()i)

R31260 b 1 t) 7,'1:77 Cx7

K3 1370 S21.1 9 3,00

ff31370' St)AO

K3 13706 :J6157,^{.ii(}

11313711 SK177 [.C1t)

f2.313721j Sf3,378.W

R6839; 5() C}t)

tt 17l 440 S722,78' 00

R 171482 S().{}t)

R 17t-t+4 sl1.{3{I

It 1 71 jO3 $ 1;_'Ofi.S671(}

ia.i1260 %1371831 00

K.;! 2606 S^.i45r8j9.()tl

X3 12607 WO

R S484 S5i,77R{1{l

E;.98641 S71 3,8030

R 17103 S665,896 ( "JO

}t67687 $400

R94639 S334613310

IC3{} 7 ift? S2102,(?{}2.00

10(}730 ;;^ ^7, )?<t.tN)

K 17140 14.2 irG.00

1131 +722 5O.tiO
10 U72 StY.i}(3
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"w,cssment RtlU

Ihe ttighiartdb at trophp Ciub Public lpiprovement District

Tow it of Trophy Club, "!'eras

I ax Parcel

k,tirtis7riOit

kll3iil

^7Cj 41t}twi

,lnnuaJ Installment Per I:ot

(Due !n Lm.u.)r; Principal

Z,t (+^IJ(d1kItt,, Ye;'^.(^ and Jf1lCrest t.^tlSt^ ...._asm
Total ..

^ ?!}{};^ .._.-..^^--- ,JS,
m

,^,^
^

r,1 ,t^}'• ^l. : ^

t}t)^ ^! f^.'.ih 3?

)l{) J.t 'i.::' h32 i?

101 t ^ P?^tSQ. , , .^ S".21
S1,117.70

17'_,4 i S 1."f;:1t)4

1,7 ?O.:i ;sS4'.3 7'?i.",7

54^ 2 N I, Ir. S'

>{7'^(q S 1,i:11.tl.a

)J; SI.833.8

'(lTil D1 :ylia.n`F SI.`Ji7

.^:^'.
L9 4?S.^Jfl

}t):?? ^+ ;^7 ) 5; `>,1' tt tii

202:^ 2,ts('1' 99

202 4 fi1_,tS.3 +. °r ^-iti _+tl >' t1;'}.t)n

E12 h B!}t7 .t;> y,4#),9P `S' i0 ).3.'.

sit S 2,13

7? tl . , ' 13 S ! l 7i:1.y`1

y^, t i,47 ?{)Ei 24

S 2,1'4 J")'4 4J .-t ? S. , ^ i 7 .1 >

'() ',2y5r a;t
^^i _-ii r1 ii}^'.ii?3

03? ,' ^d.. -^ -

_'(ii; s? S46.0$ ',3^S r)'

21) 14 S1' 16-i t^# 77 ti.'..1' ? =3;

'i4t? S2,;1;7tY71 1?4 ,
t

^R2,4^..^.. 3^^..19

701 " ^tl.tTft 3x 1) l ^4,S 13 (
;a*2,91

TCM UDddnO I I

20



EXHIBIT A

TOWN OF TROPHY CLUB PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT p3STR1CI NO> I

2010 ASSESSMENT ROLL

2010
OUTSTANDING ANNUAL

TAX PARCEL LAND USE ASSESSMENT ASSESSMENT INSTALLMENT LOT TYPE ONITS

534878 RC", 3.17,885 03 $2788508 $2 219 51 1 1

534879 ^^E:-1 327,615.e8 52788508 32,219 51 1

>2785508 327,8,85,18 52,219.51 1 1

327 885 08 $27,88508 >2.211) 51 1

5^d? 32 RE^ $27,885 03 a21,885.??8 $2.219,5; 1 ^

534883 RES 327.685.03 527,88508 $2,21951 1 1

534F,84 f-, 4 327.885 08 $2,788508 $1,21y.51 1

534885 RFS S27,E385.013 A27.845.08 *.2.213 51 1 1

534 88E's REs 327,885 98 $27.335(8 >2.219 51 1 1

534887 327,885 08 $27ti85 i`a S2.21951

5:111898 ZtEs 527 8,85,08 $27,£385 Q8 >2:219 51

534689 R E.13 $27.885 08 527,385 Ca >2219 51 1 1

5:3d.'.t90 RES 527,885 v8 5:.'7,385 08 .a2,219.51 1 1

534991 885 327,885 68 $27,885 08 32;2±9.51 1 !

534632 R E5 827,88508 $27.885 03 $2,21951 1 ^

534893 R E5 327,885 78 327.885.08 3c.21-).5t 1 1

5,4,994 R ES 527.885 08 327 885.+3& 'i2,2 19.51 I

534855 17E:3 $27.f385 ()8 327,885.08 32.21y 5? 1 1

5348,96 ^.'E113 u27,88508 327,885.08 32.21951 1 1

534897 RE S 527.$85 "it3 >27.885.08 32,219 51 1 $

'34896 RES <TV27.835 03 527,885 48 $_ ,219 .51 1

533255 :7ES 521,192!a$ 321.19268 5' 1586.93 2

533256 RES 521,1192.68 $21.192.&8 31,686.83 2

5,33257 RE ^; $21,192 68 321,192 68 35 686.83 2 'I

5,31258 9E3 321,192.68 52 1.152 68 31,686 83 2 1

533259 ;2E"IS $21,192!°;#3 $00{) -S©.00 21^

533252 9E5 521,192 6~: 921 192 68 $ t ,hf3+3.83 2 1

53326-1 RES D21,'92 6U 321 192 63 V .565 83 2 d

5`3:3265 h1OtvREES S000 S10,00

533286 RF S 32119263 $21,192 68 51,686 -33 2 1

533287 R E5 321,1921,38 ^21,19268 3 i,686 .i3 2

5s3'2^^ 4E0 321,19283 321,19268 ;1 t3888:3 , 2 ?

5S3?9C'. q ES ;21,192f;13 $<"1,1925$ s 1.ti86 il3 A/ 2

,-,-.1291 RES 521,192.63 $21,192 68 a1.686 ft:i 2 $

32+ 192 68 >21192F$ a1,686 83 2 1

«29268 S000 $0 00 2p 1

533294 ^:';: ;3^'2.t>8 $21,192.88 6 8^3 $3

53 32 '35 2E yz t t i2 6a S21.1 92,63 'n

0AC3f ? ^?r i S
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^t3ir, STEVE MOSSMAN
DENTON COUNTY TAX A/C
P Q BOX 90223
DENTOFt, TX 76202e ,. -^, -, ^ •
(940) 349-3504I

PriSyerty_1ccAU^t 1^iinU^r: i? L^at^,T reE 2:

nvri kl^'!N .4: t)i i(3!:"

Nfai(ine Addr-es.S: ?-"'^tY^^lCrl)1TEiilf.,ltt^

tt^.^^^»t>^i TX 76262 . ig

Taxing C.ntrty lax Rate Per $100 "TsjYaiitr Value Ta% Amount

11Clltt}t7 tiY(^fSG,r 11 ^ 1 i'^i7 I -1,910 {N3 1 i:'^ {i),.x l

lt.sld _it ^ss^(^{SY ^-a'ii:f7 li' i?tl(^ R 1-1 Ni}(3 l a-,h2 {,^-

,'v,:7r111^vCVt f4D { ?7it_i() il i ^S(fi {}tl ti3;ii) ';{)

f rt ph} ("it;n, pit) r l t-tttei`kenry ^ vi"u^ '?t I 09 ? E}, )? fi tNS ;>

Cr»)ph CIO PI!-) 7; I Cnl;cal i; tiiA ^;:^ ^'.t)$c),^ t

,T>t.l rinsr,u^t Cfue ^13 491.Fi^
^^..^..^..-
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AMENDED AND RESTATED CONTRACT FOR WHOLESALE WATER
SUPPLY AND WASTEWATER TREATMENT SERVICES AND WATER AMD

WASTEWATER OPERATIONAL SERVICES

This Amended and Restated Contract for Wholesale Water Supply and
Wastewater Treatment Services and atex and Wastewater Operations Services
("Contract-) is entered into as of I';- , 2014 (the "Effective Date")
between THE TOWN OF TROPHY CLUB, TEXAS, a home rule municipality
located in Denton and Tarrant Counties (hereinafter "Town") and TROPHY
CLUB MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 1, a conservation and reclamation
District of the State of Texas in Denton and Tarrant Counties created and
clpernting pursuant to Chapters 49 and 54 of the Texas Water Code (hereinafter
"MUD").

Recitals

11i►HERE.AS. MUD currently supplies retail water and wastewater services
to those customers located within the corporate boundaries of MUD; and

WHEREAS, Town currently provides water and wastewater services to a
certain portion of property located within the territorial boundaries of Town which
property is not located within the boundaries of MUD nor is provided retail water
or wastewater service-, therefrom, hereinafter referred to as the "Properly" and

more fully described in Exhibit "A": and

WHEREAS, Town and MUD previously entered into the following
contracts providing for the provision of wholesale water and wastewater services,
and contract operation services, by MUD to Town: (i) "Conti-act for Water Supply
and Wastewater Treatment" dated November 20, 2007, as amended by that
certain "First Modification of Contract for Water Supply and Wastewater
Tr"tment" dated July 7, 2008 (hereafter, the "2007 Wholesale Contract"),, and
(ii) "Contract for Water and Wastewater Operational Services" dated November
12, 2007 as subsequently amended on July 'T, 2008 and Noveriber 19, 2013
(hereafter, the "2007 Operations Contract");

WHEREAS, Town and MUD desire to amend and restate the 2007
Wholesale Contract and to terminate the 2007 Operations Contract,

WHEREAS, the Interlocal Cooperation Act, Texas Government Code,
Chapter 791, et sect_, as amended {the "Act") provides authority for governmental
entities of the State of Texas to enter into interloea} contracts with each other
regarding governmental functions and services as set forth in the Act; and

WHEREAS, the provision of wholesale water and wastewater services by
MUD to Town, and the provision of operational services by MUD to Town, are
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valid governmental functions necessary for the public health, safety and welfare
for which an interlocal contract is allowed pursuant to the Act: and

WHEREAS, each Party hereto paying for the performance of
governmental functions of services shall make such payments from current
revenues legally available to the paying Party and each Party hereby finds and
agrees that it is fairly compensated for the services or functions performed under
the term's of this Contract,

NOW, THEREFORE , Town and MUD, for and in consideration of the
recitals set forth above anci terms and conditions below, agree as follows.

ARTICLE 1.
INCORPORATION ! DEFINITION$ / EXM1E31TS

11 Incorporation of Recitals. The foregoing recitals are agreed upon and
incorporated herein as a part of this Contract.

1.2 Definitions. Unless the content indicates others, the following worrls used
in this Contract shall have the following meanings:

2001" Operations Contract means that certain "Contract for Water and
Wastewater Operational Services" dated November 12r 2007 entered into by
MUD and Town, as subsequently amended on July 7, 2008 and November 19.
2011

2007 Wholesale Contract means that certain "..Contract for Water Supply
and Wastewater Treatment" dated November 20, 2007", as amended by that
certain "First Modification of Contract for Water Supply and Wastewater
Treatment" dated July 7, 2008 entered into by Town and MUD, as amended

Annual Capital Imp,roverl7ertts and Mamter7ance Chamo has the meaning
set out in Section 72.

Annual Debt Service Requiroment has the meaning set out in Section 7.2.

Certified Assessed Valuation means the most current certified assessed
valuation from the County Tax-Assessor collector as of August 't of a calendar

Commission or TCEQ means the Texas Commission on Environmental
Quality and any successor or successors exercising any of its duties and
functions

Emergency means a sudden, unexpected happening; an unforeseen
occurrence or nonriition; exi0enc,y: pressing necessity, or a relatively permanent

Page 2 of 2£3
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condition or insufficiency of servfice or of facilities resulting from causes outside of
the, reasonable control of MUD. The term includes Force Majeure and acts of
third parties that cause the MUD Water System or MUD Wastewater System to
be unable to provide the Wholesale Water Services or Wholesale Wastewater
services agreed to be provided herein.

EPA means the Environmental Protection Agency and any successor or
successors exercising any of its duties and functions,

Fort Worth Impact Fee means the charge imposed by t=ort Worth pursuant
to Chapter 395 of the Local Government Code under t.ne,. Fort,VVorth Water
Contract

Fort Worth Water Contract means the Contract for Water Service Between

the City of Fort Worth, Texas, and Trophy Club Municipal Utility MUD No. 1,
dated November 16, 2010, as amended,

infiltration and inflow means water that enters a wastewater collection
system through physical defects in the system or from other point SOLIrCeS.

MUD means Trophy Club Municipal Utility District No.1

MUD Wastewater System means the wastewater collection lines, lift
stations, pipes, valves, weters, pt,mps, motors, treatment plant. effluent
discharge lines, and other facilities, equipment and appurtenances thereto owned
or controlled by the MUD, and any :raxpansiuns, improvements, eniarger7tents,
adc;i}ions and replacements thereto,

MUD Waiter System means the water supply, treatment, storage,
transmission, pumping and distribution system of the MUD and appurtenances
thereto, and any expnnsions, improvements, enlargements, additions and
replacements thereto.

Operations Servires has the meaning set out in Section 5.2,

Parties or Party shall mean either one or more of MUD or Town or both,

as the context provides.

Permit means Permit No. lrUQ0011593-001 held by MUD authorizing the
treatment and disposal of treated wastewater effluent.

Person(s) means an indivtdual, corporation, partnership, association, joint
venture or any other third party legal entity,

Points of Connection of Wastewater means that point or points where
Town Wastewater Collection System connects tcrMUC's Wastewater System.
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points of Connection of water- means that poirit or points where Town
Water System connects to MI.1D's Water System.

Property means the approximately 609-acre tract of and located within the
corporate boundaries of Town shown in the attached Exhibit "A" .

Retail Ctlstor77er Charge has the meaning set forth in Section 7.1.

Town means the Town of Trophy Club, Texas, a home-rule municipality
located in Denton and Tarrant Counties, Texas, and all land included within the
territorial limits and extraterritorial jurisdiction of Town, at Town's creation and
thereafter annexed from time to timp.

Town Customers means any Person(s) residing within the Property and
who have the right to receive, who contract to receive or otherwise are receiving
Water and/or Wastewater Services from Town Water Distribution System and/or
Town Wastewater Collection System.

Town Rate Order means an order adopted by Town setting out the rates
and fees for retail water and wastewater services for Town Customers, including
without limitation administrative fees, customer deposits, usage rates, late
charges, returned check fees, disconnect fees, meter re-read fees, and after-
hours service feefi, and any Town Surcharge.

7'uvvr) Surcharge has the meaning set forth in Section 7 i{d},

Tov,Fr, Wastewater Gotlectiorr Systen? means the Wastewater system
constructed and owned by Town for the collection of Wastewater received from
Town Customers, ending at the Points of Connection of Wastewater.

Tovvri Water Distribution System means the water distribution system
constructed and owned by Town for the distribution of potable water received
from MUD to Town Customers, beginning at the Points of Connection of Water,
including any elevated storage tanks and pumping facilitiesr 7 he Town Water
Distribution System shall not include any Wells.

1_!tility Fee has the meaning set out in Section 7.4.

Utility Fee Remainder has the meaning set out in Section 74_

Wastewater means the water-carried wastes, exclusive of ground,
surface, and storm waters, normally discharged from the sanitary conveniences
of dwellings, including aparti-nent houses, hotels, offices buildings and
irrst;tutions, of a dorr7estic, not industriat, nature, and that meets the requirements
of this Contract.
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Water or Water Supply means potable water that meets federal and state
standards for consumption by hunnans,

Wells means any and ail potable water wells that may be con'sjucted
within the Property or for the benefit of the Property by Town or its designee.

Wholesale, Wastewater Sendr-es means the wholesale wastewater
treatment and disposal services provided by MUD in accordance with the terms
and conditions of this Contract in receiving, treating, testing, and disposing of
Wastewater from Town Wastewater Collection System in accordance with this
Contract.

Wholesale Water Services means the wholesale services provided by
MUD in furnishing a v^lhr^tesale supply of Water to Town at the Points of
Conoection of Water,

1.3 Exhibits. The foilowing Exhibits attached to this Contract are hereby

made a part of the Contract as though fully incorporated herein;

Exhibit "A" The Property
Exhibit "B" - Points of Connection of Water and Wastewater

ARTICLE 11,
EFFECT ON PRIOR CONTRACTS

2.'t 2007 Operations Contract. As of the Effective Date, the 2007
Operations Contract shall terminate for all purposes; provided, however, 'the
terms and conditions set forth therein relating to payment by Town to MUD for
services shall remain in effect until such fime as MUD commences collection of
the Retail Customer Charge under this Contract.

2.2 2007 Wholesale Contract. As of the Effective Date, the 2007 Wholesale
Contract shall be amended and restated by this Contract.

2.3 Prior Revenues. MUD shall be entitled to collect and retain all revenues
for any and all water and wastewater -services rendered to Town Customers prior
to the Effective Date pursuant ta the 2007 Operations Contract and 2007
Wholesale Contract, including any such revenues received after the Effective
Date, The Parties agree that it is their mutual intent that the MUD shall continue
to receive all payments under the 2007 Operations Contract and 2007 Wholesale
Contract until such time as any payments under this Contract can be collected ;n
lieu thereof.
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ARTICLE III.
WHOLESALE WATER SERVICES

3.1 Points of Connection of Water. MUD sha!l deliver a wholesale supply of
Water to Town Water Distribution System at the existing Points of Connection of
Water. Any additional Points of Connection of Water must be at locations
mutually agreed upon in writing by the Patties.

3,2 Quantity of Wholesale Water Services, Subject to, the tern-is of this
Contract, MUD agrees to purchase and transport to Town a supply of Water (i)

in aquant+ty that meets all regulatory requirements for public water systems
applicable tn the provision of retail water service by Town to Town Customers
located within the Property; and (ii) to be made available according to the same
terms, conditions and limitations that MUD furnishes a supply of Water to its retail
custorners. MUD agrees that, for purposes of compliance with 30 Texas
Administrative Code Sec. 290.45(f), the maximum authorized daily purchase rate
shall be not less than 0.6 gallons per minute, and the maxirnurr7 hourly purchase
rate plus actual service pump capacity shall be at least 2.0 gpm per connection
or provide at least 1,004 gpm and be able to meet peal; hourly derr,andst

whichever is less.

3.3 Resale Prohibited; Town shall not provide or sell Water received under
this Contract to any person entity, private or public, other than Town's retail
custorners located within the Property, without MUD's prior written consent, The
Parties agree that as of the Effective Date, MUD has not provided any such
consent and Town does not provide retail water or wastewater service to any
customers located outside the Property.

3>4 Sole Provider MUD will be the sole source of Wholesale Water Services
to Town for the Property unless MUD consents in writing to Town's conversion !Q
another wholesale provider. Under the terms and conditions set forth herein,
MUD shall be entitled to provide Wholesale Water Services to Town for the
Property from any source available to MUD.

3,5 Title to Water. Title to the water purchased by MUD and transported to
Town under this Contract shall remain with MUD at all times until it reaches the
Points of Connection of Water. At the Points of Connection of Water, title to the

Water shall pass to the Town.

3.6 Conservation and Drought Planning. Town will adopt a water
conservation plan and a drought contingency plan in compliance with TCEQ
rules, 30 Texas Administrative Code, Chapter 288. with provisions at least as
stringent as the provisions of the existing MUD Water Conservation and Drought
Contingency Plan. MUD shall provide Town with any amended or revised MUD
Water Conservation and Drought Contingency Plan upon adoption, and Town will
adopt a water conservation plan and a drought contingency plan in compliance
with TCEQ rules, 30 Texas Administrative Code, Chapter 288, with provisions at
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least as stringent as the provisions of the amended or revised MUD Water
Gonservation and Drought Contingency Plan within sixty (60) days of Town's
receipt of the amended or revised MUD Water Conservation and Drought
Contingency Plan, Town specifically agrees that upon institution of any
mandatory water conservation or drought, contingency restrictions by MUD upon
its customers, MUD shall impose identical restrictions upon Town Customers as
part of the Operational Services until and unless Town has adopted more
stringent restrictions, in which event MUD shall enforce Town's more stringent
restrictions upon Town Customers,

3.7 Plumbing Regulations, MUD and Town both covenant and agree to
adopt and enforce adequate plumbing regulations with provisions for the proper
enforcement thereof, to ensure that neither cross-connection nor other
undesirable plumbing practices are permitted. Plumbing regulations adopted by
Town shall be not less stringent than those adopted by MUD.

3.8 Curtailment of Service. If water service is curtaded by MUD to other
customers of the MUD Water System, MUD may impose a like curtailment on
Wholesale Water Services delivered to Town under this Contract. MUD will
impose such curtailments in a nondiscriminatory fashion The Parties agree that
they will not construe this Contract to prohibit MUD from curtailing service
completely in the event of a maintenance, operation or Emergency for a
reasonable period necessary to complete such maintenance operations or
repairs or respond to an Emergency circumstance Town acknowledges and
agrees that the MUD's provision of Wholesale Water Services under this
Contract is subject to applicable provisions of the MUD Water Conservation arid
Drought Contingency Plan.

3.9 Water Service Rules, Regulations and Policies. Within sixty (60) days
of the Effective Date, Town agrees to adopt retail water service rules, regulations
and policies with provisions at least as stringent as, and not inconsistent with, the
provisions of the existing MUD water service rules, regulations and policies (the
"MUD Service Rules and Policies"), MUD shall provide Town with any amended
or revised water service rules, regulations and policies upon adoption, and Town
will adopt provisions at least as stringent as the provisions of the amended or
revised MUD service rules, regulations or policies within sixty (Og) days of
Town's receipt of the amended or revised MUD service rules, regulations and
policies.

3.10 Consumer Confidence Report. Town shall timely adopt a consumer
confidence report in accordance with all regulatory requirements, and to conduct
any public hearing relating thereto- MUD agrees to furnish all required data and
information required for Town to prepare the report and a draft of the report to
Town for Town's approval, and further agrees to distribute the approved report to
all Town customers upon receipt from Town as part of the Operations Services to
be provided hereunder,
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ARTICLE IV.
WHOLESALE WASTEWATER SERVICES

4.4 Points of Connection of Wastewater. MUD shall receive Wastewater
from Town Wastewater Collection System at the existing Points of Connection of
+IWastewater. Any additional Points of Connection of Wastewater must be at
c.-cations mutually agreed upon in writing by the Parties,

4.2 Wholesale Wastewater Service.

(a) Subject to the terms and conditions of this Contract and the
requirements of applicable law. MUD agrees to provide Wholesale Wastewater
Services to Town: (i) in a+auantity that meets all regulatory requirements
applicable to the provision of retail wastewater service by Town to Town
?Gustor,}ers locate{-i within the Property; and (ii) according to the sarrie terms,
c.ondit+ons and limitations that MUD furnishes wastewater senAce to its retail
customers.

(b) Town agrees that it shall adopf and enforce. (1) wastewater
service rules and policies at least as stringent as, and not inconsistent with, the
MUD Service Rules and Policies; and (ii) any pretreatment requirements for its
retail customers as may be necessary to cause the quality of Wastewater Town
delivers to the MUD Wastewater System pursuant to this Contract to meet the
requirements of this Contract and 'tie MUD Service Rules, and Policies. MUD
shall be responsible for the quality of any Wastewater collected frorn MUD
customers and passed through the Town Wastewater Collection System to the
MUD Wastewater System.

(c) MUD shall be entitted to collect samples of Wastewater at or near
the Point(s) of Connection into the MUD Wastewater System or from any point
within the Town Wastewater Collection System and cause the same to be
ana[vzed in accordance with accepted methods in the industry to determine if
such wastewater complies with the MUD Service Rules and Policies and any
pretreatment rettuurernents If analysis discloses that the Wastewater does not
comply with the MUD Service Rules and Policies and any pretreatment
requirements, Town shall be obligated to require the offending originator to
immediately cease discharging such Wastewater into the Town Wastewater
Collection System or to pretreat such Wastewater such that the discharge of
prohibited Wastewater ceases immediately.

4,3 Sole Provider. MUD will be the sole source of Wholesale Waste-water
Service to Town for the Properly unless MUD consents in writing to Town`s
conversion to another wholesale provid€r. Under the terms and conditions set
forth herein, MUD shall he entitied to provide Wholesale Wastewater Service to
Town for the Property frorr, any source of treatment capacity available to MUD.
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4,4 Wholesale Service Commitment Not Transferable. MUD`s commitment
to provide Wholesale Wastewater Service is solely to Town and soleiy for the
Property. Town may not assign or transfer in whole or in part its right to receive
Wholesale Wastewater Service without MI1JD's prior written consent.

405 Curtailment of Service, The Parties agree that, if Wastewater service is
curtailed by MUD to other customers of the MUD Wastewater System. MUD may
impose a like curtailment on Wholesale Wastewater Service delivered to Town
under this Contract The MUD will impose such curtailments in a
nondiscriminatory fashion The Parties agree that they will not construe this
Contract to prohibit MUD from curtailing service completely in the event of a
maintenance operatiors_ or Emergency for a reasonable period necessary to
complete such maintenance operations or repairs or respond to an Emergency
circumstance.

4,C Town Prevention of Infiltration and Inflow- Town will adopt and enforce
such ordinances as are reasonably necessary or prudent to minimize Infiltratiort
and Inflow to the Town Wastewater Collection System, and such ordinances
shall be at least as stringent as, and not inconsistent with, the MUD's Service
Rules and Policies. Town will prohibit the discharge of drainage water and
stormwater run-off into the Town Wastewater Collection System_

4.7 Liability of Town. As between the Parties, liability for damages to third
persons arising from the reception, transporiation, delivery, treatment and
disposal of all Wastewater will remain with Town to each Point of Connection of
Wastewater: provided, however, that if any such liability to third parties arises
directly out of an act or omission of MUD in the provision of Operations Services,
then the MUD will pay all costs and expenses arising out of such liability as part
of the Operations Services provided hereunder. Town agrees that any sewer
backups caused by force majeure, intrusion of roots into the Town Wastewater
Collection System, defects in construction of 'the Town Wastewater Collection
System or other circumstances that are not under the direct control of MUD do
not arise out of the act or omission of MUD, and MUD shall have no liability in
connection therewith. As between the Parties, liability for damages to third
persons will pass to MUD at the Points of Connection of Wastewater to the MUD
Wastewater System

4.8 Liability of MUD, Subject to the fort-,qomg, MUD will bear the
responsibility as between the Parties for the proper reception, transportation,
treatment, and disposal of such Wastewater received by it at each Point of
Connection of Wastewater in accordance with the Contract. However, the
Parties agree that they will not construe this Contract to cause MUD to have
liability for damages to ttfe MUD Wastewater System or to third persons arising
from the delivery by Town of any Wastewater that is prohibited rinder this
Agreement. SirnHarly, this Contract shall not be construed as a waiver of any
governmental immunity that MUD or Town may enjoy with respect to any claims
brought by third party persons or entities.
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4.9 MUD Treatment and Use, of Wastewater, MUD may 'treat the
Wastewater delivered by the Town pursuant to this Contract and dispose of the
effluent generated thereby in such manner as may be provided in the Permit or
other TCEQ authorization in its sole discretion; provided, however, that if MUD
has ef;tuent available, as determined in MtJD`s discretion, !hen MUD wol make
available all or part of such effluent to Town at Town`s request in accordancia
with all terms and conditions of the MUD Service Rules and Policies relating to
the use of wastewater effluent for irrigation customers, as modified from time to
time. To the extent allowed by law, MUD will make effluent available to Town at
no charge. Town shail be responsible for the acquisition or construction of 34
facilities, and irriprovernents required to transport effluent from the MUD
Wastewater System to the place of use, and any modifications to the MUD's
Wastewater System, at Town's sole expense. The design of all such
improve rnents and modifications shall be subject to MUD's prior approval- Town
shall also be responsible for securing at its sole cost and expense all regulatory
approvals required for the delivery and use ofeffluent. Notwithstanding any
provision herein to the contrary, the Town acknowledges and agrees as follows:
(i) that Trophy Club Country Club shall have an opportunity tt? purchase any
excess Wastewater effluent prior to such effluent being made available to Town
and (ii; Town may not furnish or resell to third parties any Wastewater effluent.

4,10 Wastewater Service Rules, Regulations and Podicies. Within sixty (60)
days of the Effective Date, Town agrees to adopt wastewater service rules,
regulations and policies with provisions at ieast as stringent as, and not
inconsistent with, the provisions of the existing MUD wastewater service rules,
regulations and policies i"MUD Service Rules and Policies"}. MUD shall provide
Town with any arnended or revised wastewater service rules, regulations and
policies upon adoption, and Town will adopt provisions at least as stringent as
the provisions of the amended or revised MUD service rules, regulations or
policies within sixty (60) days of Town's receipt of the amended or revised MUD
service rules, regulations and policies.

ARTICLE V.
OPERATIONS SERVICES RELATED TO TOWN WATER DISTRIBUTION

SYSTEM, TOWN WASTEWATER COLLECTION SYSTEM,
AND TOWN WELLS

5A Town's Obligation to Construct Town Water Distribution System and
Town Wastewater Collection System, Town shall continue to design and
construct, at its sole cost and expense. the Town Water Distribution System and
a Town Wastewater Collection System to provide retail water and wastewater
service to Town Custorners. The Town Water Distribution System shall include
all facilities necessary to store Water and to convey Water from the Points of
Connection of Water to Town Customers. The Town Wastewater Collection
System shall include all facilities necessary to transport Wastewater from Town
Customers to the Points of Connection of Wastewater. The Parties specifically
agree that the MUD shall have no obligation whatsoever to construct new
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improvements within, or as part of, the Town Water Distribution System or the
Town Wastewater Collection System to serve new development or new land
uses within the Property.

5.2 Provision of MUD Operations Services.

(a) MUD agrees to provide the following contract operation,
maintenance, nieter reading, billing anttrepor2ing functions (collectively, the
"Operations Services") to Town in connectior, with the Town Water Distribution
System and Town Wastewater Collection System:

1) Operating and maintaining the Town Water Distdbution System and
Town Wastewater Collection System in the same manner as the
MUD operates and maintains the MUD Water System and the MUD
Wastewater System;

21 Repairing and replacing the Town Water Distribution System and
Town Wastewater Collection System (but excluding any
expansions) in the same manner as the MUD repairs and replaces
the MUD Water System and the MUD Wastewatet System as
necessary to provide continuous and adequate service in
accordance with ali regulatory require ments,

3} Reading individual meters of Town retail customers on behalf of

i awn;

4) Billing, collecting from, and responding to service calls from Town
Gustoniers;

5) Dead-end water flushes;

6) Prepare and filing certain operational and compliance reports
required by law, including 'those required by the Commission or
EPA relating to operation of the Town Wastewater Collection
System or Town Water Distribution Systern, as more particularly
described in Section 5,2{e} below;

7) Preparing and furnishing to Town a monthly operational report
including the same detail and information prepared by the MUD for
its own system;

8) Providing a representative, upon prior request of Town. to present
reports at regular Town Council meetings regarding service
matters; and

9) Cooperating with respect to any inspection of the Town Wastewater
Collection System or Town Water Distribution System by TCEQ,
EPA or any other regulatory entity.

Page 11 of 28

TCMUD000035

44



(b) MUD will provide Operations Services to Town under this Contract
in compliance with all applicable, federal, state, and local taws, rules and
regulations, and in the same manner that it provides those services to retail water
and wastewater Customers within the MUD. If MtJ0's failure to comply with all
applicable, federal, state, and local laws, rules and regulations for which it is
responsible under this Contract results in fines or penalties against Town of any
kind or any requirement that Town take corrective action by any governmental
agency having jurisdiction, then MUD shall pay such fines and penalties, and
shall undertake such correction, as part of the Operations Services provided
lrereunder; provided, however, that notwithstanding any provision in this Contract
to the contrary, MUD shall have absolutely no responsibility to pay any costs,
fines or penalties that arise out of any of the following. (i) the design or
construction of the Town Wastewater Collection System or Town Water
Distribution System; (ii) the introduction of prohibited Wastewater by any
customer of the Town into the Town Wastewater Collection System for which the
Town has not taken immediate enforcement action, (iii) any action, decision,
inaction or delay of the Town that contributes to the circumstance or condition
t'hat results in the violation, fine or penalty; (iv) matters which are outside the
scope of Operations Services to be provided by MUD; and (v) matters that are
outside the reasonable control of the MUD, including acts of force majeure and
acts of third parties.

(c) As an independent contractor, MUD shall work independently and
exercise its own judgment in providing the Operations Services. Town shall have
no control over the means or methods of the MUC}'s work, except that MUD shall
provide Operations Services in a professional and workmanlike manner
consistent with the standards by which it furnishes services to its own retail water
and wastewater customers, and shall comply with all applicable local, state and
federal laws, rules and regulations.

(d) Town acknowledges that the Operatiort..^ Services do not include
any services or obligations not specifically set forth in this Contract. By way of
example and without limitation, the Operations Services do not include design or
construction of extensions to the Town Wastewater Collection System or Town
Distribution System; plumbing inspections; construction inspections; records
retention: filing of plans for new infrastructure improvements with regulatory
authorities; legislative functions such as adoption of policies, rates and service
rules; or enforcement of Town ordinances, rules, regulations or policies.

(e) As part of the Operations Services, MUD shall prepare, execute
and tile on behalf of Town those operations and sampling reports and filings that
may legally be executed by an operator of a public water or wastewater system
on behalf of the owner. With respect to those reports, plans and filings that must
be executed or filed directly by the owner of the public water or wastewater
system, MUD shall prepare a draft report, plan and!or filing for Town, but Town
shall be solely responsible for final approval, execution and filing thereof, The
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Parties agree that the data to be furnished by MUD for purposes of preparing
reports, fiiinc:s and plans on behalf of Town shall be operational and sampling
data obtained by MUD in connection with providing the Operations Services, and
Town shall be responsible for gatherinq and furnishing other data not generated
as a result of operating the Town Water Distribution System and Town
Wastewater Collection System, such as Town population data.

5r3 Wells. Town has sole discretion regarding the specifications for, number
and location of Wells that may he constructed by Town. Any and all Wells
constructed by or at the direction of Town or dedicated to T own shall be owned
and operated by Town, and are outside the scope of Operations Services to be
furnished by MUD. No Wells shall be connected to the Town Water Distribution
System without the prior consent and approval of the MUD. MUD has sole
discretion regarding the specifications for, number and focation of Wells that may
be constructed by ivtl,IDP

5A Cooperation,
(a) Town agrees to fully cooperate with MUD in connection ^,Jth the

provision of Operations Services by MUD. By way of example and mthojt
limitation, Town shall not prevent, hinder or impair MUD's access to the Town
Wastewater Collection System or Town Water Distribution System. Similarly, in
the event Town receives any notices, correspondence, notices of enforcement
action, inspection reports, customer correspondence or other information relating
to water or wastewater services, operations or water or wastewater facilities, it
shall provide a copy thereof to MUD as soon as reasonably practical. Town shall
also timely execute any operations reports or filings that most, be executed by an
authorized representative of Town, and shall fully cooperate as necessary to
allow MUD to file any regulatory reports or filings that MUD files on behalf of
Town as part of the Operations Services.

(b) The Parties agree to fully cooperate and provide notice to each other
as soon as practicable regarding emergencies and events that materially impact
water and wastewater service_

(c) The Parties will fully cooperate to respond to alleged violations or
enforcement action pertaining to water and wastewater services.

5.5 Approvals for MUD Bonds Relating to Town Infrastructure, The
Parties acknowledge and agree that the Operations Services to be provided by
MUD include necessary repairs or replacement of the Town Wastewater
Collection System or the Town Water Distribution System. In the event that MUD
seeks to issue bonds for funding any such repairs or replacements and TCEQ
withholds approval for the issuance of such bonds, or the Attorney General of the
State of Texas refuses to render an opinion approving the validity of bonds
issued by MUD for such purposes, then the Parties agree to fully cooperate all;
necessary to cause such repair or replacement to proceed without delay at, no
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additional cost to Town, MUD shall have no obligation to undertake any such
repair or replacement until an alternative funding source is identified and agreed
upon by the Parties.

5^6 Elevated Storage Tank. Tic Parties acknowledge that tile 'Town Water
Distribution System include-, an elevated storage tank to which both Parties
contributed funr:ing. As part of the Operations Services, MUD shall operate the
elevated storage tank to provide and maintain pressure, to customers of both the
Town Water Distribution Systern and the MUD Water System in accordance with
all applicable regulatory requirements applicable to both systerns,

5.7 Insurance. MUD agrees to secure and maintain insurance for ttae Town
Water Distribution System and Town Wastewater Collection System at Mf;D's
sole cost and expense. The Parties mutually agree that any payments of
insurance under any such policies sh0u9d go to MUD for purposes of repair or
replacement of Town infrastructure. In the event that the insurance company
tenders payment of the insurance proceeds to Town for any reason, Town
agrees to immediately rernit all such insurance proceeds to MUD. which sha3
utilize the proceeds for repair or replacement of Town infrastructure, or if the
ar'Mint of the proceeds exceeds the cost of the repair or replacement, MUD
shall credit such excess proceeds to the Annual Capital Improvements and
Mhiritenincc, Charge due from Town,

ARTICLE VI,
CHARGES TO TOWN

6.1 Charges to Town for Wholesale Water Service, Wholesale
Wastewater Services and Operational Services. The MUD charges to Town
for Wholesale Water Services, Wholesale Wastevvater Serti+ices, and Operational
Services shall consist of the following,

(a) ►.he Retail Customer Charge',

(b) The Annual Capital Improvements and Maintenance ChargF>,

(c) Fort Worth Impact Fees; and

(d) Utility Fees

ARTICLE VIIII,
BILLING AND PAYMENT

7.1 Retail Customer Charge,

(a) Within thirty (30) days of the Effective Date, Town shall adopt the
Town Rate Order. Except as provided in Section 7,1(d) hel©w, the Town Rate
Order shall be identical to the existing MUD Rate Order. MUD shall provide to
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Town any amended or revised MUD Rate Order adopted by MUD not later than
sixty (60) days before the effective date of any new rates and charges, and Town
shall adopt a Town Rate Order identical to the amended or revised MUD Rate
Order within sixty (60) days of Town's receipt of the amended or revised MUD
Rate Order, such that the effective date of any changes to the Town Rate Order
and MUD Rate Order shall be identical_ In the event that in connection with any
rate proceeding TCEQ (or the Public Utility Commission of Texas) changes any
MUD rates, fees or charges, MUD shall provide immediate notice thereof to
Town and Town shall use its best efforts to change the Town Rate Order
irrir-nediate€y, including by calling a special meeting if necessary.

(b) As part of the Operations Services provided to Town, MUD shall bill
and, collect amounts due frorri Town Customers under the Town Rate Order for
the provision of retail water and wastewater services. Such billing and collection
shall be conducted by MUD in the sarne manner of billing and collections
performed by MUD for retail water and wastewater service furnished by MUD to
its retail customers in the MUD boundaries,

(c) Town hereby authorizes MUD to collect all ►nonthly payments from
Town Customers under the Town Rate Order and to directly deposit such
payments into the MUD bank accounts. MUD shalt keep one hundred percent
(100%) of all collections from Town Customers, except as provided in Section
7.10) below. All such payments collected by MUf? from Town Customers under
the Town Rate Order identical to the rates, fees and charges, of MUD are
collectively referred to herein as the -Retail Customer Charge."

(d) Town shall have the right at any time to modify its rate order to
include separate fees and charges in addition to those billed and charged by
MUD. Any such additional Town fees or charges (a "Town Surcharge") shall be
separately identified on the MUD's bill to Town Customers. Town shall give MUD
not less than 60 days prior written notice of any such additional Town charge.
Except as provided in Section 7.2(ti) below with respect to the levy and collection
of a Town Surcharge for payment of the Annual Capital Improvements and
Maintenance Charge, MUD shall remit payment of any such additional Town fees
and charges that it collects to Town within fifteen 15) days after receipt of a
written invoice for payment from Town. Notwithstanding any provision herein to
the contrary, Town agrees that the volumetric rates for water and wastewater
service to Town Customers under the Town Rate Order must be identical to the
MUD volumetric rates for water and wastewater services under the MUD Rate
Order, and the Town Surcharge shalt not be a gallonage charge (and instead
shall be a fixed sum).

7.2 Annual Capital Improvements and Maintenance Charge.

(a) The Annual Capital Improvements and Maintenance Charge shall
be calculated in accordance with the following methodology:
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1) Town shall furnish its most current certified assessed valuation
from the County Tax-Assessor (the "Certified Assessed Valuation")
for the Property to the MUD or. or before August I Of each year that
this Contract remains in efteGt.

2) No later than September 1 of the same year, MUD will furnish Town
with an annual debt service, maintenance and operallons budget
that contains the following items,

a< The total debt service requirements for new money ad
valorem tax bonds issued by MUD after the Effective Date in
the next calendar year ("Annual Debt Service Requirement");

b. The total expenses to be funded with maintenance taxes in
the next fiscal year ( ' "Annual Maintenance and Repair
Requirement"), save and except budgeted costs of MUD
director fees and director elections, the costs of which MUD
agrees shall not be funded by the Annual Capita(
Improvements and Maintenance Charge;

c. The cumulative total of the Certified Assessed Valuation for
the MUD and the Property,

d. Town's percentage share of the Annual Debt Service
Requirement and Annual Maintenance and Repair
Requirement ealculated by dividing the Certified Assessed
Valuation for the Property by the cumulative total of the
Certified Assessed Valuation for the MUD and the Property;
and

e. The amount of the next year's Annual Debt Service
Requirement and Annual Maintenance and Repair
Requirement for which the Town is responsible for payment
during the subsequent calendar year (the "Annual Capital
Improvements and Maintenance Charge") shall be equal to
the product of the Town's percentage share of the Annual
Debt Service Requirement and Annual Maintenance and
Repair Requirement multiplied by the Annual Debt Service
Requirement and Annual Maintenance and Repair
Requirement.

(b) If for any reason the timing of issuance of ad valorern tax debt by
MUD does not allow the Annual Capital Improvements and Maintenance Charge
to be calculated in accordance with the foregoing schedule, then Town's share of
any such ad valorern debt service payments shall be added to the next
subsequent calendar year Annual Debt Service Requirement.
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